
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JUNE 23, 2015 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
15-06-03 designating Day Place and Fisherman's Lane as
Country Dirt Roads and accepting the roads into the Gila
County Maintained Roadway System.  (Steve Sanders)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County
Order No. LL-15-02 that is related to a liquor license
application submitted by Joseph Stephen Nowak for a
person transfer of a Series 7 beer and wine license with an
interim permit to operate at the Flying Grizzly located in
Strawberry.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider approving the
proposed primary property tax levy for FY 2016, excluding
amounts that are attributable to new construction, that is
$2,610,889 greater than the amount levied for FY 2015.
(Roll Call Vote)  (Don McDaniel)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of



A.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library
District Board of Directors) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept a
Grant Renewal Amendment for Grant No.
GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-Y3 - Gila Parent Outreach and
Awareness, which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant"
in the amount of $65,000 for the period July 1, 2015,
through June 30, 2016.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept
Grant Agreement No. GRA-RC029-16-0761-01 - San Carlos
Apache Parent Outreach and Awareness, which is a
"Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of
$70,000 for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30,
2016.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year
2015-2016 Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County
Library District.  (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion to adjourn as
the Gila County Library District Board of Directors
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year
2015-2016 Annual Tentative Gila County Budget in the
amount of $91,985,237; authorize the publication of the
summary budget; and set the public hearing for July 28,
2015, to adopt the Final Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Gila County
Budget.   (Don McDaniel)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Disability
Related Employment Services Contract No. DE126000-001
between the Arizona Department of Economic Security,
Rehabilitation Services Administration and Gila County,
d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training to provide
employment services to vocational rehabilitation clients in
Gila County for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30,
2018.  (Malissa Buzan)



 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADES15-089113) between the Arizona Department of
Economic Security and Gila County Division of Community
Services, Community Action Program in the amount of
$451,731 for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30,
2020, to provide case management and community services
to eligible Gila County residents.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 051915 between Gila
County and the Gila County Community College District
(Provisional) for the County to provide $250,000, in four
quarterly payments of $62,500, to the College for utility
expenses and repair and maintenance of the facilities and
real property at its Globe and Payson campuses
commencing July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2016.  
(Don McDaniel)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve various
Professional Services Contracts attached to this agenda
item in order to retain the services of attorneys for the
period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016; all of whom
assist the Superior Court in Gila County as public
defenders on an annual basis.  (Jeff Hessenius and
Jonathan Bearup)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Contract No. 07012015-16 between the Arizona



A.   Approval of Contract No. 07012015-16 between the Arizona
Community Action Association (ACAA) and the Gila County
Community Services Division, Community Action Program
(CAP), whereby ACAA will administer funding in the amount
of $137,834.00, which will be used to  provide
weatherization services, utility repair and replacement,
utility deposits and bill assistance to eligible citizens
residing in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2015,
through June 1, 2016.

 

B.   Approval of Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 between
Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's
Association to extend the term of the Agreement for an
additional four years, from May 24, 2015, through May 23,
2019.

 

C.   Acknowledgment of the reappointment of Richard L.
Harpster to the Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement
District Board of Directors for another four-year term of
office retroactive from January 1, 2015, through December
31, 2018.

 

D.   Acknowledgment of Sarah Linkey's resignation from the
Beaver Valley Fire District Board of Directors and the
appointment of Samuel K. Baker to fulfill Ms. Linkey's
unexpired four-year term of office effective April 20, 2015,
through December 31, 2016.

 

E.   Acknowledgment of Gary Richardson's resignation from the
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Board of
Directors and the appointment of Bruce E. Johnson to fulfill
Mr. Richardson's unexpired term of office effective May 2,
2015, through December 31, 2018.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report



G.   Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

J.   Approval of the June 9, 2015, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

 

K.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have
been approved by the County Manager for the weeks of
May 18, 2015, through May 22, 2015; May 25, 2015
through May 29, 2015; and June 1, 2015 through June 5,
2015.

 

L. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the
weeks of June 2, 2015, June 16, 2015, and June 23, 2015.

 

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.  



6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

7. APPELLATE REVIEW HEARING:  
 

A.   1:30 P.M. - Information/Discussion/Action to affirm,
modify or reverse the decision of the Gila County Hearing
Officer regarding Community Development Division
Complaint No. CP1304-011.  (Bob Gould)

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-3198     Public Hearing      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst., Public

Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-06-03 designating Day Place and Fisherman's Lane as
Country Dirt Roads.

Background Information
On March 2, 2015, Gila County Public Works received a citizens' petition
to establish Day Place and Fisherman's Lane as County Dirt Roads.

Evaluation
The roads are approximately 1500 feet in length and provide access to 19
properties. The roads meet the requirements of Gila County Country Dirt
Road Policy ENG03-04.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners along the roads have been granted to
the County. Providing maintenance as described in the Country Dirt Road
Policy will be a benefit to both the County and the residents along the
roads.  Providing maintenance on these roads will not reduce the level of
service to other roads in the Gila County Maintained Roadway System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Interim Director recommends that the Board
adopt Resolution No. 15-06-03.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-06-03
designating Day Place and Fisherman's Lane as Country Dirt Roads and
accepting the roads into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System. 
(Steve Sanders)



Attachments
Resolution No. 15-06-03
Day Place and Fisherman's Lane Country Dirt Road Easements











































































   
ARF-3183     Public Hearing      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Flying Grizzly Liquor License Application-Gila County Order No. LL-15-02.

Background Information
Joseph Stephen Nowak has submitted an application to the
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for the Flying
Grizzly located in Strawberry.  The application is for a person transfer of a
Series 7 beer and wine liquor license with an interim permit to operate. 

The purpose of a Series 7 beer and wine bar license is defined as follows: 
"Allows a beer and wine bar retailer to sell and serve beer and wine,
primarily by individual portions, to be consumed on the premises and in
the original container for consumption on or off the premises." 

Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts and processes the
license application, it is sent to the local governing body in which city,
town or county the establishment is located.  Upon the local governing
body's review of the application, a recommendation is then issued by the
local governing body, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors
(Board), to the DLLC to either approve, deny or issue a "no
recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted
at the establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any
person residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of
the establishment regarding this application. To date, the Clerk of the
Board's Department has not received any objections to this application.

Evaluation
The application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board



The application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors Department for submission to the Board.  An internal
review has been conducted by the Gila County Building Permit
Department, the Treasurer's Office, and the Health Department. 

Building Permit Department staff visited the establishment and noted that
the building is in compliance with zoning and building clearances.  The
Treasurer's Office staff has submitted documentation indicating that there
are no tax issues with this property.  Health Department staff visited the
establishment and determined there are no issues with regard to Health
Department permits.

Conclusion
The application has been reviewed by several County departments with no
objections and no one has submitted a written objection to this
application; therefore, a public hearing should be held by the Board to
entertain any comments from the public with regard to the application
before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation to the DLLC.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue
an approval recommendation to the DLLC if there are no objections
received during the public hearing.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County Order No.
LL-15-02 that is related to a liquor license application submitted by
Joseph Stephen Nowak for a person transfer of a Series 7 beer and wine
license with an interim permit to operate at the Flying Grizzly located in
Strawberry.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
BOS Recommendation LL-15-02
GC Order LL-15-02 Liquor License Application
Treasurer, Community Development and Health Dept. Interoffice
Memos
Sheriff's Office Memo and Affidavit of Posting

































   

ARF-3220     Public Hearing      2. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1,
2015-June 30,
2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Truth in Taxation Hearing

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors has published a notice of hearing to
notify property taxpayers that the proposed primary property tax levy for FY
2016, excluding the amount attributable to new construction, is greater than
the amount levied for 2015.  Per Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) § 42-17107, a
notice of the hearing was published in the June 3, 2015, and June 17, 2015,
editions of the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper, the official newspaper of the
County for 2015, and in the June 9, 2015, and June 16, 2015, editions of the
Payson Roundup newspaper.  The Board of Supervisors also issued a press
release containing the truth in taxation notice.

Evaluation
On February 10, 2015, per ARS, the Gila County Assessor transmitted to the
Finance Department the total net primary assessed value of all properties in
Gila County.  The net assessed value for the entire County has increased year
over year (2014 to 2015) from $416,099,715 to $482,220,482. This $66,120,767
increase is the result of a $56,000,000 increase in centrally assessed properties
(mines and industrial properties assessed by the Arizona Department of
Revenue) and the Assessor identifying $10,000,000 in unreported and
incorrectly assessed properties. 

At the current primary property tax rate of $4.19 per $100.00 of assessed
value, the property tax levy for FY 2016 is projected to be $2,610,889 greater
than the levy in FY 2015. The proposed Tentative Budget for FY 2016 is



balanced utilizing this additional revenue.

The Board of Supervisors has scheduled this truth in taxation public hearing
on Tuesday, June 23, 2015, in order to obtain comments from interested
citizens.

Conclusion
For the last five (5) years the Gila County Board of Supervisors has faithfully
refrained from increasing the $4.19 tax rate even under severe conditions
imposed by state unfunded mandates and county fund sweeps by the state. In
addition, declining net primary assessed values of property over the last five
years have reduced the property tax levy as much as 10% each year. The
Elected Officials and the Board of Supervisors have been diligent in making
operational adjustments and budget cuts to work within the reduced revenue.

It is important that the Board maintain the current $4.19 tax rate and allow the
increase in net assessed value to increase the available revenue to maintain
county operations such as the Sheriff's Office, the Courts, the County Attorney,
Public Works, all Elected Official Offices and appointed departments.  

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board conduct the public hearing and receive all
comments from citizens regarding maintaining the current tax rate thereby
increasing the property tax levy by $2,610,889 over last year's levy; and that
any motion to adopt an increased levy be voted on by a roll call of Board
members.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider approving the proposed primary
property tax levy for FY 2016, excluding amounts that are attributable to new
construction, that is $2,610,889 greater than the amount levied for FY 2015.
(Roll Call Vote)  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
TNT Notice
Press Release for TNT Hearing
TNT Notice-Affidavit of Publication





Gila County Truth in Taxation; 

Notice of Public Hearing 
 

CONTACT:  Gila County Board of Supervisors (928) 402-8770 

                    For Immediate Release: 

   June 16, 2015 

 
 

(GLOBE, AZ) – In compliance with section 42-17107, Arizona Revised Statutes, Gila 

County is notifying its property taxpayers of Gila County’s intention to raise primary 

property taxes over last year’s level.  Gila County is proposing an increase in primary 

property taxes of $2,610,889 or 14.8%. 

 

For example, the proposed tax increase will cause Gila County’s primary property taxes 

on a $100,000 home to increase from $364.89 (total taxes that would be owed without 

the proposed tax increase) to $419.00 (total proposed taxes including the tax increase). 

 

This proposed increase is exclusive of increased primary property taxes received from 

new construction.  The increase is also exclusive of any changes that may occur from 

property tax levies for voter approved bonded indebtedness or budget and tax overrides. 
 

All interested citizens are invited to attend the public hearing on the tax increase that is 

scheduled to be held June 23, 2015, at 10:00 a.m. in the Board of Supervisors 

Hearing Room at 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona. 
 

 

 

 

### 

 







   
ARF-3225     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approve and accept First Things First Grant Renewal Amendment ofr Grant No. GRA-004-14-0616-01-Y3 - Parent
Outreach and Awareness for early literacy.

Background Information
On March 31, 2015, the Gila County Library Board of Directors gave authorization to apply for this Grant Renewal.
This is a continuation of the Library District's early literacy initiative. The total grant renewal award is for $65,000 to
be used for parent education within each community and to enroll children ages birth to five in the Imagination
Library Program, which mails an age appropriate book each month to each enrolled child.

Evaluation
The current Early Literacy Grant from "First Things First" has been highly successful in providing curriculum
materials and educational training to the library and the community on the importance of early literacy skills and
the importance of reading to children. To date, there are 1,647 children enrolled and receiving books monthly in the
Gila Region service area, and an additional 1,513 children have "graduated" from this program by turning five in the
past five years.  The libraries in the Gila Region have committed to holding at least 40 early literacy themed
workshops to provide additional support and information for parents of young children.

Conclusion
This Grant Renewal Amendment allows the Library District the opportunity and ability to provide early literacy
training and materials to families and children ages birth through five years within the Gila Region Service area.
This grant has a goal of providing materials to 1,800 children.

Recommendation
Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve and accept this Grant Renewal
between the Gila County Library District and the Gila Regional Partnership Council, and the Arizona Early
Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) in the amount of $65,000 for the period of July 1,
2015, through June 30, 2016.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors) Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept a Grant Renewal
Amendment for Grant No. GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-Y3 - Gila Parent Outreach and Awareness, which is a
"Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of $65,000 for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.  
(Jacque Griffin)

Attachments

2016 Grant Award
Renewal Application 2016
Original Grant Agreement GRA-RC004-0616-01
Legal Explanation





First Things First  
Notice of Renewal Consideration 

 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2015 
 
TO:  Gila County Library District 
 
FROM:  Michael Strawther 

Fiscal Specialist 
 

RE:  Renewal Information for Fiscal Year 2016 
 

 
The current Fiscal Year (FY) 2015 grant awards are approaching renewal consideration from the First 
Things First Gila Regional Partnership Council.  Receipt of this packet does not guarantee renewal of the 
grant award; it indicates eligibility for renewal consideration.  First Things First may renew grant awards 
based on a number of factors including past performance and response to this renewal package.   
 
If renewed, the responsibility for adherence to all rules, regulations and terms and conditions set forth 
in the original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement will remain in effect for the 
contract period.  This includes compliance with the appropriate standards of practice, program 
implementation, as well as timely submission of data and narrative reports and financial 
reimbursements.  
 
The renewal package includes instructions and the following attachments: 
 

Attachment A – Program Implementation Questions 
Attachment B – Program Implementation Plan 
Attachment C – Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 
Attachment D – Contract Service Units 

 
The completed renewal package (Attachments A-D) must be received no later than 4:00 PM on April 3, 
2015.  Submit via email to mstrawther@azftf.gov.  Electronic submissions is preferred but if sending by 
standard mail, please send to my attention, First Things First, 4000 N. Central Avenue, Suite 800, 
Phoenix, AZ 85012. 
 
Once received, responses will be reviewed and funding recommendations will be made to the Gila 
Regional Partnership Council and the Board of First Things First.  First Things First staff may contact you 
for clarifications prior to making recommendations. Grant awards will be in effect from July 1, 2015 
through June 30, 2016.   
 
For questions, please contact me via email or phone, (602) 771-5097. 
 
Thank you. 



  1 

First Things First  
Grant Renewal Instructions 

July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 
 
 
The following First Things First (FTF) grant is eligible for renewal by extending the current FY 2015 grant 
award. Programs in FY 2016 cannot be different in scope than from what was originally awarded.   
 
 

Grantee Name: Gila County Library District 

FTF Grant Number: GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-Y2 

Strategy Name: Parent Outreach and Awareness 

Data Template(s) Assigned: Parent Outreach and Awareness 

Eligible Renewal Amount: $ 65,000.00  
 
The amount is subject to change pending legal and procurement review 
at First Things First.  If a different amount is approved for renewal, an 
updated line item budget & budget narrative will be required. 

 

 
The renewal package includes the completion and submission of Attachments A-D. 
 
Program Implementation Questions (Attachment A) 
Provide a narrative response to each question in Attachment A. 
 
Program Implementation Plan (Attachment B) 
Provide an updated implementation plan for FY 2016.  The implementation plan should be related to 
the originally approved program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and process. 
 
2016 Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative (Attachment C – must include both the line item budget 
and budget narrative) 
 
FY2016 Contract Service Units (Attachment D) 
 

 
  
Standards of Practice Updates: Utilization of the Standards of Practice are part of the requirements for 
all awarded grants and represent the intent for how specific strategies are to be implemented.  Prior 
authorization is needed if the program deviates from the Standards of Practice.  Grantees are 
responsible for reviewing and implementing the most recent versions of the Standards of Practice, 
located in the FTF Strategy Toolkit, 
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA.   
 
Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation: It is the responsibility of the grantee to 
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models. Grantees are to include staff 
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in 
budgets, as needed.  Programs will need to refer to their national office and/or administrative home for 
cost information, if applicable. 
 
 

http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA


  2 

Quality Assurance:  It is the intent that each FTF grantee receives a targeted quality assurance (QA) visit 
within the cycle of their full grant period.  The findings from targeted QA visits will also be used to assess 
grantee/program performance for renewal considerations.  A grantee’s performance is reviewed 
individually and not in comparison with other grantees when considerations are made. 
 
Program Performance and Data Reporting Requirements:  First Things First provides program 
information to the public, regional partnership councils, and the Board of First Things First.  The 
information regularly provided includes data related to performance measures and target service units; 
prior program performance, including QA findings; information provided in program narrative reports; 
and financial/expenditure information.  Regional partnership councils utilize this information in strategic 
planning efforts, to identify annual funding priorities, to assist with renewal decisions, to develop new or 
modified strategies, to review the impact of programs in the region and state, and to highlight 
achievements in system building. 
 
Grantee Data Reporting Requirements are identified in each grant award and can be accessed in the FTF 
Strategy Toolkit, 
http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA.  Please 
review the latest Data Reporting Requirements in preparation for implementation upon grant renewal. 
 
Renewal Package Due Date:  The renewal package must be received no later than 4:00 PM on April 3, 
2015.  Submit via email or standard mail to:  

 
Michael Strawther, Fiscal Specialist 
Marjorie Bennett, Fiscal Specialist 
First Things First 
4000 N. Central 
Phoenix, AZ  85012 
mbennett@azftf.gov 
mstrawther@azftf.gov 
(602) 771-5097 

http://www.azftf.gov/pages/webmain.aspx?PageID=2D427ADB35B34BB09F353B77B74AB9BA
mailto:mbennett@azftf.gov
mailto:mstrawther@azftf.gov


  3 

Attachment A 
 

Program Implementation Questions 
 

 
1. If applicable, explain any proposed modifications for FY16, including the change(s) to be made, 

how they were determined to be necessary, and how they will contribute to the success of your 
program.  Please note that program modifications cannot deviate from the original scope of 
work or applicable standards of practice.  

 
 Each month, over the last four and one half years, thirty-three children have graduated from 

the Dolly Parton Imagination Library Program because they reached their fifth birthday. This 
leaves a gap in the First Things First Parent Outreach Strategy of twelve months of non-
service.  During the past year, thanks to First Things First, Gila County Library District has 
been able to purchase a subscription to an award winning publication, LADYBUG or CLICK, 
for each of the children graduating from the program. We feel that this has helped extend 
the parent/child interaction through the gap.  While the FY16 budget does not include these 
magazines, Gila County Library District will strive to find additional means to continue this 
important service. 
 

 Gila County Library District will continue encouraging the existing "Every Child Ready to 
Read" and “Brain Time” early literacy programs in libraries that provide training to parents 
about the importance of early literacy development for young children birth through age 
five.  Since 2010, our Community Liaisons have conducted outreach in locations where 
parents of children ages birth to five years of age might be found.  Nearly all parents in Gila 
County are now aware of this program or are being reached through other agencies.  
Therefore, we will not be employing Community Liaisons in this area for FY16.  Gila County 
Library District will persist in its collaborative efforts with the Gila County WIC program, 
Battered Women’s shelters, Teen Pregnancy Programs, and local hospitals striving to reach 
as many parents/caregivers of children birth through age 5 as possible with our Early 
Literacy message. 

 
 
 



 

4 
 

Attachment B 
Program Implementation Plan 

2016 
 

Act iv i t ie s  Task  Perso n Res po ns ib le  
Date  T ask  Wi l l  Be  

Com ple ted / Timel ine  
Su p por t  D o cu men tat ion  

Timesheets/Payroll Fi l l  out t imesheets  
 

Pam Beerens Weekly on 
Mondays 

Filed with Gi la County 
Payrol l  (Finance Dept)  

Process reimbursement 
request for Payroll  from 
FTF 

Pam Beerens  Monthly Filed with FTF PGMS 

Promotion of Early 
Literacy Programming 
in Gila County 
Registration of 
Children into 
Imagination Library 
 

 
Register Children for 
Imagination Library  

Public L ibrary 
staff,  other 
community 
agencies  

July 2015 through 
June 2016 

Registration forms will  
be turned over to Pam 
Beerens for input in IL 
System 

Locate Venues for 
Reaching Children whose 
parents don’t come to 
l ibrary 
 

Pam Beerens  Monthly Found on IL System 
online 
http://www.imaginationl
ibrary.com/  

Data updates for change of 
address 

Pam Beerens  Monthly Handled online through 
IL System 

Foundation Site NCOA Alerts for “Bad” 
addresses  

Pam Beerens  Monthly Monthly reports onl ine 
2n d  week of each month.  

Process invoices for book 
orders from Dollywood 
Foundation Imagination 
Library 

Pam Beerens  Monthly Filed with Gi la County 
Finance Department 

Invoicing Process al l  other invoices 
for Early Literacy 
programming 

Pam Beerens  As the need 
arises 

Filed with Gi la County 
Finance Department  

http://www.imaginationlibrary.com/
http://www.imaginationlibrary.com/


 

5 
 

Input Paid Invoices to First 
Things First  

Pam Beerens  Monthly Filed with FTF PGMS 

Report Trainings to District 
Staff  

Public L ibrary 
staff  

Quarterly  Email PUBLIC SERVICES 
LIBRARIAN 

Data / Narrative Reports Upload Data Report to FTF  
 

Pam Beerens  Monthly Filed with FTF PGMS 

Upload Narrative Report to 
First Things First  
 

Pam Beerens  Quarterly  Filed with FTF PGMS 

Poll  Kindergartens in all  
public schools for number 
of children not prepared 
for enrollment.  
 

Pam Beerens  August 2015 Keep on fi le in Gi la 
County Library District 
Office and report to FTF 
PGMS 

Evaluation  Evaluate Survey Responses  
 

Pam Beerens  September 2015 Email report to County 
Librarian and PUBLIC 
SERVICES LIBRARIAN 

Include Survey results in 
quarterly report  
 

Pam Beerens  October 2015 Filed with FTF PGMS 

Mail Survey to parents of 
children registered as of 
February 1 s t   during 4 th  qtr.  

Pam Beerens  April  2016 Copy of Survey on File in 
GCLD Office and report 
to FTF PGMS 

Satisfaction Survey to 
Parents  

Receive surveys and report 
on results 
 

Pam Beerens  June 2015 Include survey results in 
Final quarterly report to 
FTF PGMS 



 

6 
 

Train parents/caregivers 
by attending parent 
meetings of various 
community entit ies during 
the year 
 

Jacque Griff in, 
Pam Beerens,  

As often as 
possible when the 
occasions arise  

Filed with FTF PGMS 
Data Reports  

Early Literacy Training 
 

Train parents/caregivers 
by video presentation at 
WIC Cl inics and take new 
registrations for 
Imagination Library  
 

WIC Cl inic 
Employees 

Weekly Data reports and 
quarterly narratives to 
FTF PGMS 

Continue one on one 
training w/parents  
 

Public L ibrary 
staff ,  Community 
agencies  

Daily as the need 
arises 

Filed with FTF PGMS 
quarterly reports  



 

7 
 

Attachment C (Instructions) 
 

 

How to Complete the Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative 
 

Complete a 12-month budget for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 using the template 
provided.  Please make sure to include the provided budget narrative which describes the proposed line 
item budget.   
 
Please keep in mind items described in a line item budget and in more detail in the budget narrative 
should describe how the costs were determined and the public purpose for the cost related successfully 
implementing the project.  Requested funds must follow these guidelines: 
 

 Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of First 
Things First funds. 

 Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations. 

 Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to all costs charged 
and expended by the agency – consistent treatment of costs. 

o For example – a cost may not be assigned to another grant award as an indirect cost if 
any other cost incurred for the same purposes in like circumstances has been allocated 
to the First Things First award as a direct cost. 

o For example – a cost for a certain type of expense is charged one rate to another source 
of funding and a different rate to First Things First - this would not be consistent 
treatment of costs. 

 Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 Be adequately documented.  

 All travel related costs for these trainings and meetings should be included in the Applicant’s 
budget and calculated using the State of Arizona travel rate limitations for mileage, per diem 
and lodging as described on the budget narrative worksheet.  For more information about the 
state requirements, visit http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/.   

 Budget modification requests must be submitted via the FTF Partner Grant Management System 
(PGMS) Communication Log and approval received prior to the implementation of any of the 
modifications. 

 

http://www.gao.az.gov/travel/


 

8 
 

Attachment C 
Line Item Budget 

While you must use this format, you may reproduce it in Word or Excel.  Limit your budget line items to the budget categories 
listed below.  

Budget period:  July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 
Budget Category Line Item Description  Requested Funds Total Cost 

PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total  $5,280.00 

Salaries Public Services Librarian 16% of FTE     5,280.00  

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $2252.56 

Fringe Benefits or Other ERE Social Security, Medicare, Worker’s 
Comp. 
Health Insurance and AZ Retire 

    414.48 
 
   1,838.08 

 

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES  Professional & Outside Services Sub 
Total 

$45,640.00 

Contracted Services Dollywood Foundation Imagination 
Library Books 

 45,640.00 
 

 

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $0 

In-State Travel  
Out of State Travel 

    

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total  

Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities 

    
 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $5917.44 

 Postage 
 
 

 Printing/Copying 
 
 

 Program Incentives 
 
 

 Office supplies 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

 

1500 postcards and letters for 
parent survey 
 
Printing 1500 letters, postcards & 
envelopes 
 
Promo first books 
Shipping for books 
 
2000 Labels for Registration Forms 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  

  1,218.50 
 
 
    328.00 
 
 
 4000.00 
    344.94 
 
      26.00 
  
 
  
 
  
 
         
 
 
  

 
 

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total  

Equipment $4,999 or less in value     

Subtotal Direct Program Costs:   $59090.00 

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $5910.00 

Indirect/Admin Costs 10%  $5910.00  

Total  $ $65000.00 

 
 
Authorized signature___________________________________  Date      

  



 

9 
 

Attachment C (Continued) 
 

Budget Narrative 
 

The purpose of the budget narrative is to provide more clarity and detail on the various budget line 
items.  The budget narrative should explain the criteria used to compute the budget figures on the 
budget form.  Please verify that the narrative and budget form correspond and the calculations and 
totals are accurate.  Please include one narrative that matches the 12-month line item budget 
categories and subcategories.     
 
Personnel Services:  Include information such as position title(s), name of employee (if known), salary, 
time to be spent on this program (hours or %), number of months assigned to this program, etc.  Explain 
how the salary rate for each position was determined.  If salaries are expected to increase during the 
project year, indicate the percentage increases for each position and justify the percent of the salary 
increase.  Also, be sure to include the scheduled salary increases on the Budget Form. 
 
The Public Services Librarian spends approximately 16% of her time annually as staff for this grant. This 
is direct staffing, and includes data input for new registrations to the Imagination Library, data updates 
for address changes, collection of statistics from libraries and Liaisons, processing invoices, ordering and 
distributing first books, tracking timesheets for the Liaisons each week, monthly reimbursements and 
quarterly reports. In an attempt to more accurately reflect the true cost of staffing this grant, 16% of the 
Public Services Librarian salary will be allocated to this grant.  
 

33,000 x 16% = $5,280.00 
 
 

Summary of Personnel Services: 
   Public Services Librarian - $  5,280.00     
   
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES:      $5,280.00 
 
Employee Related Expenses:  Include a benefit percentage and what expenses make up employee 
benefit costs.  Indicate any special rates for part-time employees, if applicable.  Explain how the benefits 
for each position were determined.  If using a fringe benefit rate, explain how this percentage is justified 
or approved by your agency. 
 
Gila County provides matching funds for: 
  FICA at 6.2%        $327.36 
  Medicare at 1.45%           76.56 
  Workers Comp. Insurance at .20%          10.56 
          $414.48 
 
In addition, Health Insurance (calculated at 16% of $7,660) and the County’s contribution for Arizona 
State Retirement (calculated at 11.6% of $5,280) is included, as follows: 
 Health Insurance   $1,225.60 
 Arizona State Retirement        612.48 
        $1,838.08 



 

10 
 

 
TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES:     $   2,252.56 
      
Professional and Outside Services:  If professional consultants/services costs are proposed in the budget, 
define how the costs for these services were determined and the justification for the services related to 
the project.  Explain how all contracts will be procured. 
 

 Gila County Library District will continue to contract with the Dollywood Foundation Imagination 
Library to supply a book a month by mail to any child registered in the program. Rate of $28.00/year 
per child with a goal of 1630 for a total of $47,600.00. 

 We will not be contracting with an evaluator in order to conduct a survey of all the Kindergarten 
teachers at all the schools to find out how many children entered school in August 2014 unprepared 
for reading readiness.  The survey will be conducted by the Public Services Librarian.   
 

 
Total Professional & Outside Services:     $47,600.00 
 
Aid to Organizations or Individuals:  In the event that this application represents collaboration and the 
contract will be utilizing other sub grantees or subcontractors to perform various components of the 
program, include a list of sub grantees, programmatic work each sub grantee will perform, and how 
costs for each sub grantee are determined. 
 
Other Operating Expenses:  Explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and 
justify the need for the items.  All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures.  All items should be categorized in the following categories: Telephones / 
Communications Services, Internet Access, General Office Supplies, Food, Rent/Occupancy, Evaluation 
(non-contracted and non-personnel expenses), Utilities, Furniture, Postage, Software (including IT 
supplies), Dues/Subscriptions, Advertising, Printing/Copying, Equipment Maintenance, Professional 
Development/Staff Training, Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for Staff, Insurance, Program 
Materials, Program Supplies, Scholarships, and Program Incentives 
 

 Postage for 1500 surveys (letters and return address postcards) for parents estimated at 
$1,218.50 

 Printing of 1500 letters, postcards & envelopes estimated at $328.00. 

 Promo first books and shipping estimated at 4344.94. 

 2000 labels for mailings, $26.00. 
 

Total Other Operating Expenses:      $5,917.44 
 
Non-Capital Equipment: For items with a unit cost less than $5,000 and an initial estimated useful life 
beyond a single year, explain each item to be purchased, how the costs were determined and justify the 
need for the items.  All purchases should be made through competitive bid or using established 
purchasing procedures.  For example, items such as computers, printers, projectors, etc. each with a unit 
cost less than $5,000. 
 
Administrative/Indirect Costs:  Administrative costs are general or centralized expenses of overall 
administration of an organization that receives grant funds and does not include particular program 



 

11 
 

costs.  For organizations that have an established federally approved indirect cost rate for Federal 
awards, indirect costs mean those costs that are included in the organization’s indirect cost rate.  Such 
costs are generally identified with the organization’s overall operation and are further described in 2 CFR 
220, 2 CFR 225, and 2 CFR 230. 
 
Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses 
included: 
 

X   Option A - Administrative Costs:  with proper justification, sub grantees may include an 
allocation for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct costs requested of the grant 
request.  Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for:  costs of financial, 
accounting, auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including 
overall organization’s management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance that 
protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs solely 
attributable to the project.  Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries and 
benefits of the project’s director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time spent in 
support of a specific project. 

OR 

 Option B - Federally Approved Indirect Costs:  If your organization has a federally approved 
indirect cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up 
to 10% of the direct costs.  Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved indirect 
cost rate agreement. 

 
Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project.  The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs 
that are usually treated as indirect. 
Total Administrative Costs:        $5,910.00 
 
 
Authorized signature            Date     

 



 

12 
 

Attachment D 
 

FY2016 Contracted Service Units 
 
Lead Strategy – Parent Outreach and Awareness 
There are assigned Service units for the strategy award from First Things First.  Given the Listed Service 
Unit, provide a contracted number for FY 16.  
 
Number of books distributed: 21,600  
Number of events held: N/A  
Number of resource guides distributed: N/A  
Number of workshops held: 10  
Number of participating practices: N/A  
 
Important Items to NOTE: 

 If you are providing a Service Unit different than the FY15 contracted number, provide a brief 
description explaining the change. 

 If you are not providing services for a particular Contracted Service Unit within the assigned 
Strategy please indicate with “NA”.   

 
IMPORTANT:  Please find the full listing of First Things First Target Service Unit descriptions loaded in 
PGMS under Grantee Resources within a folder called Target Service Units.   
 
 

 







































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3227     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst County

Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 -
June 30, 2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approve and accept Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First
Things First) Grant Agreement No. GRA-RC029-16-0761-01 for San Carlos Region
Parent Outreach and Awareness for Early Literacy.

Background Information
On March 31, 2015, the Gila County Library District Board of Directors gave
authorization to apply for this Grant. This is a continuation of the Library District's
early literacy initiative. The total grant renewal award is for $70,000 to be used for
parent education within each community and to enroll children ages birth to five in the
Imagination Library Program, which mails an age appropriate book each month to
each enrolled child. In addition, children who turn five during the grant year will be
registered to receive an age appropriate magazine mailed to their home for one year. 
This grant also provides for two temporary, part-time Community Outreach Liaison's
to provide parent contact and education throughout the service area, and a temporary,
part-time Early Literacy Programming Coordinator to conduct parent/child workshops
throughout the region.

Evaluation
The current Early Literacy Grant from "First Things First" has been highly successful
in providing curriculum materials and educational training to the library and the
community on the importance of early literacy skills and the importance of reading to
children.

The Community Outreach Liaison has worked throughout the region to contact
parents and provide information and enroll children in the program. To date, there
are 609 children enrolled and receiving books monthly in the San Carlos Region, and
338 children have 'graduated' by turning five in the past three years.  The Early
Literacy Coordinator has held at least 40 workshops throughout the service area.

One final note: this Grant Agreement does not require a new signature page, since the



application that was previously submitted contained the signature pages, and one
original with signatures was returned to us upon notification of award.

Conclusion
This grant allows the Library District the opportunity and ability to provide early
literacy training and materials to families and children ages birth through five years
within the San Carlos Region.  This grant has a goal of providing 11,130 books to be
distributed and 75 parenting workshops to be held.

Recommendation
Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors approve and
accept this Grant Agreement between the Gila County Library District and the San
Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, and the Arizona Early Childhood
Development and Health Board (First Things First) in the amount of $70,000 for the
period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Agreement No.
GRA-RC029-16-0761-01 - San Carlos Apache Parent Outreach and Awareness, which
is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of $70,000 for the period of July
1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Grant Agreement GRA-RC029-16-0761-01
Legal Explanation















































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3173     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Library District FY 2015-2016 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government
Budget Process outlines the budget requirements and timelines for each
county's and incorporated city's and town's budgets. 

For the Gila County Library District, the process includes the Library
District Board of Directors adopting a tentative budget and; thereafter, at
a future Board meeting, adopting a final budget.  

The Library District's budget is included in the entire budget for Gila
County.

Evaluation
In Gila County, the Board of Supervisors acts as the Board of Directors for
the Gila County Library District.  In order to adopt the Library District's
annual tentative budget for fiscal year 2015-2016, the Board of
Supervisors must adjourn as the Board of Supervisors, convene as the
Library District Board of Directors and then take an official action to
adopt that tentative budget.  

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative budget will be given by Jacque
Griffin, Gila County Assistant County Manager/Librarian, to the Board of
Directors.  After a discussion, the Library District Board of Directors will
consider adopting the proposed tentative budget.

Recommendation
N/A



N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County Library District.  (Jacque
Griffin)  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors.)

Attachments
GC Public Libraries in Review



Gila County Public Libraries: 2014 in Review 

 Visits: 192,910 
More than 3,710 people visited the eight libraries each week, or an 

average of 93 people/library/day 

 Library Cards:  20,645 
Nearly 40% of residents have an active card (used within the past 

three years). 

 Items Borrowed: 256,995 
On average, every resident borrowed  4.8 items: books, audio,     

movies as well as e-books and e-magazines. 

 Books Available: 227,886 
Libraries have 80,000 children’s books,  and more than  20,000  

videos.  

 Public Computer Sessions: 57,741 
Gila County libraries have  72 public computers which represents a 

10%  increase in 5 years. Computer usage continues to climb. 

 Program Attendance: 13,321 
Libraries  held 1,106 programs, a 40% increase in  5 years. 

 Library Staff:  23.5 
Represents a 20% decrease in staff in 5 years. 

 Cost: $28.04 per resident 
Total operating budget  for libraries: 

$1.1 million county secondary tax funds 

$400,000 municipal funds 

(additional $220,000 in grants and donations ) 



   

ARF-3174     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: FY 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

FY 2015-2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County FY 2015-2016 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget
Process outlines the budget requirements and time lines for each county's and
incorporated city's and town's budgets.

The budget process is for the Board of Supervisors to first adopt a tentative budget and
at a future meeting to adopt the final budget. There are also statutory newspaper
publication requirements to be applied after the tentative budget has been adopted
and before the final budget is adopted.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative fiscal year 2015-2016 budget for Gila County
will be presented by Don McDaniel, County Manager. After a discussion, the Board of
Supervisors will consider adopting the proposed tentative budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Annual Tentative
Gila County Budget in the amount of $91,985,237; authorize the publication of the
summary budget; and set the public hearing for July 28, 2015, to adopt the Final
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Gila County Budget.  (Don McDaniel)



Attachments
Gila County FY16 Tentative Budget





























































































































































































































   

ARF-3199     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Disability Related Employment Services Contract with Arizona Department of Economic Security,
Rehabilitation Services Administration.

Background Information
Contract No. DE12600-001 will replace Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST) current contract
for Job Development and Placement.

Evaluation
This contract allows the Gila County GEST Program to provide Disability Related Employment Services
to those clients whose Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES), Rehabilitation Services
Administration (RSA) authorization indicated specific need for this service.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Contract No. DE126000-001, GEST will continue to provide
Disability Related Employment Services to those ADES/RSA clients who are authorized and have
indicated specific need for this service.

Recommendation
The Director of Gila County Community Services Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve
Contract No. DE126000-001 for Disability Related Employment Services, which will enable GEST to
provide employment services to Vocational Rehabilitation clients in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Disability Related Employment Services Contract No.
DE126000-001 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services
Administration and Gila County, d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training to provide employment
services to vocational rehabilitation clients in Gila County for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30,
2018.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
GEST Contract
Exhibits



















































































































































































































   
ARF-3204     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2020 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015-June 30, 2020 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) with the Arizona Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
The Community Action Network is made up of public and private agencies that work to alleviate poverty and
empower low-income families in communities throughout Arizona. Most of the agencies are Community Action
Agencies (CAAs), created through the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. Arizona's CAAs provide services to
approximately 150,000 people annually. 

Evaluation
This Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) provides  $451,731 for the contract period July
1, 2015, through June 30, 2020.

With funding from this contract, case management and community services will be provided to eligible residents of
Gila County which includes assisting households in resolving crisis situations and move closer to self-sufficiency.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Contract No. ADES15-089113, the Gila County Community Action Program
will provide case management services to eligible residents of Gila County of which the intent is to assist the
household in resolving crisis situations and move closer to self-sufficiency. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends the Board of Supervisors approve Contract No.
ADES15-089113. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113)
between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program in the amount of $451,731 for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020, to
provide case management and community services to eligible Gila County residents.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments

IGA Contract No ADES15-089113
Exhibits A-O
Legal Explanation







































































































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3185     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 -
June 30, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 051915 between Gila County and Gila
County Community College District for Maintenance of College Facilities.

Background Information
On November 15, 2011, Gila County deeded all of its interest in the buildings and most
of the real property upon which Gila County Community College campuses are located
to the College's governing board.  Prior to that action, the County assumed the
responsibility for all maintenance, utilities and communication services at the Gila
Pueblo Campus, Occupational Center and Payson Campus.

The County and College jointly acknowledged that: (1) poor economic conditions had
led to a dramatic decrease in funding to the College and that (2) preservation of the
College’s presence within the County was of vital importance in workforce
development.  The County and the College wanted to avoid cuts in services and classes
by allowing the College to expend its limited resources in furtherance of educational
opportunities, vocational preparation for a changing job market, and small business
development and not on utilities and building maintenance.

On February 7, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) in the amount of $135,000 for utilities, communication services and
maintenance of the facilities and real property of Gila County Community College for
the period November 16, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

On August 20, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$275,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2012, to June
30, 2013.

On September 3, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$250,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2013, to June



30, 2014.

On October 28, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$250,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2014, to June
30, 2015.

Evaluation
Economic conditions have not improved significantly since the original
understanding.  Because the College and the County have a mutual interest in
economic development, they desire to continue the previous relationship in an IGA in
order for the College to continue to focus on vocational education and retraining of
dislocated workers.

The College and the County have a long standing partnership which has existed solely
to provide educational and vocational opportunities for Gila County residents of all
ages.  Approval of this IGA will continue that relationship and will allow the College to
focus its efforts on preparing young people for a job market that has changed
markedly as a result of technology and retraining mature workers to reenter that job
market.

The County will provide $250,000 in quarterly payments of $62,500 for utilities,
communication services and maintenance of the facilities and real property of
Gila County Community College.  The College agrees to enhance its vocational training
curriculum to prepare County residents to enter the job market.

Conclusion
Approval of this IGA will allow the County to continue to partner with Gila County
Community College to promote economic development in Gila County.  The term of
this IGA is from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this IGA between the Gila County Community College
District and Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 051915
between Gila County and the Gila County Community College District (Provisional) for
the County to provide $250,000, in four quarterly payments of $62,500, to the College
for utility expenses and repair and maintenance of the facilities and real property at its
Globe and Payson campuses commencing July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2016.  
(Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 15-16
Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 14-15
Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 13-14



Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 12-13
Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 11-12
Legal Explanation





















































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3212     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Approval of Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to provide
professional legal services, such as representation for indigent citizens in the
categories of felony and misdemeanor criminal actions, delinquency, dependency, and
mental health cases, as well as mediation services.  At the June 24, 2014, Board of
Supervisors' meeting, the Board approved the contracts (attached) for all of the
attorneys with the exception of Emily Danies and Raymond Geiser.  Raymond Geiser's
contract was awarded on July 15, 2014, at such time when it was presented to the
Board; Emily Danies contract was awarded on September 16, 2014, at such time when
it was presented to the Board.

Evaluation
The Professional Services Contracts for various attorneys utilized annually by the
Superior Court in Gila County will expire on June 30, 2015.  New contracts have been
issued, with a contract term commencing on July 1, 2015, and expiring on June 30,
2016, with the option to renew for two additional one-year periods.

Conclusion
Court staff wishes to execute new contracts with the attorneys utilized by the Superior
Court of Gila County to replace the contracts that will expire on June 30, 2015.

Recommendation
The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County recommends the Board
of Supervisors' approval of the attached Professional Services Contracts with the
various attorneys, which the Court utilizes on an annual basis.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve various Professional Services Contracts



Information/Discussion/Action to approve various Professional Services Contracts
attached to this agenda item in order to retain the services of attorneys for the period
of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016; all of whom assist the Superior Court in Gila
County as public defenders on an annual basis.  (Jeff Hessenius and Jonathan
Bearup)

Attachments
Professional Services Contract No. 041415-Ronald DeBrigida
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-2-Brad Crider
Legal Explanation









































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-3202     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Independent Contractor Agreement 2015-16 Utility Assistance Programs Contract No. 07012015-16 with Arizona
Community Action Association.

Background Information
This contract has been in existence between the Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) and the Gila County
Community Services Division, Community Action Program (CAP) for the past 7 years.

ACAA is a 501 (c) (3) non profit agency created in 1967 to address poverty across Arizona.  Through a collaboration
of nearly 300 organizations and individuals, ACAA develops and implements strategies to address and ultimately
eliminate poverty.

The Community Action Program launched in 1964 as part of President Lyndon B. Johnson's Economic Opportunity
Act to fight poverty by empowering the poor.

Evaluation
Contract No. 07012015-16 will administer energy program funding from ACAA in the amount of $137,834.00 to Gila
County CAP to be used to provide weatherization services, utility repair and replacement, utility deposits and bill
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this contract, Gila County CAP program will receive funding to be used to
provide eligible citizens residing in Gila County with services that promote economic self sufficiency.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
contract.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Contract No. 07012015-16 between the Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) and the Gila
County Community Services Division, Community Action Program (CAP), whereby ACAA will administer funding in
the amount of $137,834.00, which will be used to  provide weatherization services, utility repair and replacement,
utility deposits and bill assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2015, through
June 1, 2016.

Attachments

Contract 07012015-16
Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D
Exhibit E
Exhibit F



Exhibit F
Legal Explanation











































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3215     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  

Submitted For: Tommie Martin, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1
Fiscal Year: FY 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

May 24, 2015, -
May 23, 2019

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 for the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association. 

Background Information
On May 24, 2005, Gila County and the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association, a
non-profit organization, entered into a Lease Use Agreement whereby the County
leased a portion of the Pine County Yard property to the Horseman's Association for
use as a horse arena.

The original term of the Lease Use Agreement was for a period of five years and it
expired on May 23, 2010.  On May 3, 2011, an extension to the Lease Use Agreement
was executed to extend the term of the Lease Use Agreement for an additional four
years to May 23, 2015, and to increase the family use fee from $20.00 to $25.00 per
year.

Evaluation
The Lease Use Agreement was for a period of five years with the option to extend for a
similar period at similar terms should all terms and conditions be faithfully met.  The
original term of the Lease Use Agreement expired on May 23, 2010.  On May 3, 2011,
an extension to the Lease Use Agreement was executed to extend the term of the Lease
Use Agreement for an additional four years ending on May 23, 2015, and to increase
the family use fee from $20.00 to $25.00 per year.

Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 will allow Gila County to exercise the option to
renew the term of the Lease Use Agreement from May 24, 2015,to May 23, 2019. 

Conclusion
The extension of the Lease Use Agreement will allow the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's
Association to continue to use the Pine County Yard property as a horse arena
sufficient for horse and livestock events for an additional four-year term.

Recommendation



It is recommended by Supervisor Martin that the Board of Supervisors approve the
extension of the Lease Use Agreement with the Pine-Strawberry Horseman's
Association for an additional four-year term. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 between Gila County and the
Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association to extend the term of the Agreement for an
additional four years, from May 24, 2015, through May 23, 2019.

Attachments
Lease Extension No. 2-May 2015 to May 2019
Lease Extension-May 2010 to May 2015
Original Lease Agreement
Legal Explanation





















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-3188     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Board Member
Reappointment.

Background Information
Richard Harpster completed his initial four-year term of office on the
Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement Board of Directors on
December 31, 2014. 

Evaluation
On March 21, 2015, the Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement
District Board of Directors voted to reappoint Mr. Harpster for another
four-year term of office, retroactive from January 1, 2015, through
December 31, 2018.

Conclusion
The Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Board of
Directors voted to reappoint Richard Harpster to serve on the governing
board for another four years; therefore, this reappointment should be
acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the reappointment of Richard L. Harpster to the Beaver
Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Board of Directors for
another four-year term of office beginning on January 1, 2015, and
ending on December 31, 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the reappointment of Richard L. Harpster to the



Acknowledgment of the reappointment of Richard L. Harpster to the
Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Board of Directors for
another four-year term of office retroactive from January 1, 2015, through
December 31, 2018.

Attachments
Richard Harpster's Oath of Office
March 21, 2015 Board Minutes
A.R.S. 48-1012









   
ARF-3196     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Fire District Board Member Appointment

Background Information
A.R.S. 48-803 (B), if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than
from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the
vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
Sarah Linkey resigned from the Beaver Valley Fire District Board of
Directors.  Her term of office is for four years, from January 1, 2013,
through December 31, 2016.  Samuel K. Baker agreed to serve as a
member of the Beaver Valley Fire District Board of Directors.

Conclusion
On April 20, 2015, the Board of Directors unanimously voted to appoint
Samuel K. Baker to fulfill Ms. Linkey's unexpired term of office, which
ends on December 31, 2016.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the appointment of Samuel K. Baker as a newly appointed
governing board member of the Beaver Valley Fire District Board of
Directors.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Sarah Linkey's resignation from the Beaver Valley Fire
District Board of Directors and the appointment of Samuel K. Baker to
fulfill Ms. Linkey's unexpired four-year term of office effective April 20,
2015, through December 31, 2016.



Attachments
Oath of Office-Samuel Baker
April 20, 2015 Governing Board Minutes
A.R.S. 48-803











   
ARF-3197     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board Member
Resignation and Appointment.

Background Information
Gary Richardson resigned from the Rim Trail Domestic Water
Improvement District Board of Directors effective March 1, 2015.  His
four-year term of office began on January 1, 2015, and it ends on
December 31, 2018.

A.R.S. 48-1012 (C) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board
other than from expatriation of a term, the remaining board members
shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
Bruce E. Johnson agreed to fulfill Mr. Richardson's unexpired term of
office on the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Board of
Directors.  On May 2, 2015, the Board of Directors voted to appoint Mr.
Johnson to fulfill Mr. Richardson's unexpired term of office through
December 31, 2018.

Conclusion
On May 2, 2015, the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement Board of
Directors unanimously voted to appoint Bruce E. Johnson to fulfill Mr.
Richardson's unexpired term of office, which ends on December 31, 2018.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the resignation of Gary Richardson from the Rim Trail
Domestic Water Improvement District Board of Directors and the
appointment of Bruce E. Johnson on May 2, 2015, to fulfill Mr.
Richardson's unexpired term of office through December 31, 2018.



Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Gary Richardson's resignation from the Rim Trail
Domestic Water Improvement District Board of Directors and the
appointment of Bruce E. Johnson to fulfill Mr. Richardson's unexpired
term of office effective May 2, 2015, through December 31, 2018.

Attachments
May 2, 2015 Board Minutes
Bruce Johnson's Oath of Office
Gary Richardson's Resignation Letter
A.R.S. 48-1012













   
ARF-3203     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Reporting
Period:

May 2015

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk, Constable - Globe

Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office for May 2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
May 2015



















































   
ARF-3214     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
May 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Administrative Clerk Senior, Constable

- Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2015

































































   
ARF-3210     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr, Justice

Court-Globe Regional
Department: Justice Court-Globe Regional

Information
Request/Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Monthly Report for May 2015.

Background Information
N/A

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for May 2015









   
ARF-3218     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Reporting
Period:

Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for
May 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for May 2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Court May 2015





















   
ARF-3216     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Reporting
Period:

June 9, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors

Information
Subject
June 9, 2015, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 9, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 6-9-15 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 16 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 9, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief; Jacque 
Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the 
Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Debi Savage led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Anthony Garrisi of the First Baptist Church (via 
ITV) delivered the invocation. 

 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  

  
A.  Presentation of the University of Arizona's Gila County Cooperative 
Extension Office Annual Report and 2015-2016 fiscal year budget request 
to be considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget process.  
 
Jim Sprinkle, Ph.D., University of Arizona Area Extension Agent, Animal 
Science and Gila County Cooperative Extension Director, thanked the Board 
for the opportunity to provide this presentation and to give an overview of some 
of the activities of Cooperative Extension.  He provided a PowerPoint® 
presentation that contained results of the Cooperative Extension Stakeholder 
Survey and listed some of the goals of the Cooperative Extension Office as 
follows: 
 
Goal 1: to educate and prepare people to manager and use natural resources in 
a way that helps the economies of local communities and the state; 



Page 2 of 16 

 

Goal 2: to help individuals and families be physically, mentally, emotionally, 
and financially healthy; 
Goal 3: to help develop leadership, workplace and life skills for youth and 
adults; 
Goal 4: to enhance the growth and development of Arizona children and youth 
so that young people will contribute positively to the community; and 
Goal 5: to promote safe, profitable, and sustainable plant and animal systems.   
 
Dr. Sprinkle added that in connection with one of the priorities identified by 
the Cooperative Extension Stakeholder Survey, forest restoration, he provided 
information regarding an upcoming forest health public seminar titled “Central 
Arizona Forest: What are the Issues? What are the Solutions?” to be held on 
Wednesday, June 10, 2015, in Payson.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin inquired as to the desired expectations of the new 
(Forest Health Coordinator) position.  Dr. Sprinkle read aloud a summary of 
the expectations of the Forest Health Coordinator position.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti commented that he is pleased with the work being done in 
San Carlos and Dripping Springs at the Life Center.  The Board held a brief 
supportive discussion with Dr. Sprinkle and thanked him for the presentation.   

    
B.  Public recognition of four employees for June's "Spotlight on 
Employees" Program, as follows: Gary Eggert, David Hornung, Jeff 
McClure and Travis Todd.   
 
Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Senior, read aloud a letter 
submitted by a citizen of Gila County nominating the following Sheriff’s Office 
employees for their actions during a response to a 911 call for emergency help, 
as follows:  David Hornung, Jeff McClure and Travis Todd, who all were present 
in Payson, and Gary Eggert who was unable to attend the meeting.  Sheriff J. 
Adam Shepherd stated that he is proud and appreciative of the work being 
done by the Sheriff’s Office employees.  Supervisor Marcanti stated that he 
admires law enforcement officers’ ability to make split second decisions and 
take action based on training and he thanked them for their efforts.  Chairman 
Pastor stated that he has a son-in-law, who works as a law enforcement officer 
in Utah; therefore, he understands and appreciates all of the hard work that is 
being done for Gila County by local law enforcement officers. 

  
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

  
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 15-06-01 to name 
four previously unnamed roads in Tonto Basin as N. Ocotillo Court, W. 
Ocotillo Lane, W. Raven Cliff Way and S. Canyon Ridge Drive.   



Page 3 of 16 

 

Steve Sanders, Interim Public Works Division Director, stated that no feedback 
was received with regard to providing alternate road names for the above listed 
roads after residents were afforded the opportunity to do so.  He advised that 
the purpose of naming unnamed roads in the County is to comply with the Gila 
County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No. 11-03 and the 
Gila County Enhanced 9-1-1 System.  Chairman Pastor opened the public 
hearing and no comments were received; therefore, he closed the public 
hearing and asked for a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution 15-06-01 to name four previously unnamed roads in Tonto 
Basin as N. Ocotillo Court, W. Ocotillo Lane, W. Raven Cliff Way and S. Canyon 
Ridge Drive.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board 
of Supervisors’ Office.) 

  
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Treasurer's Office to 
correct ownership on Assessor's parcel numbers 206-16-007A, 206-16-
007B, and 206-16-007C to be in the name of the Town of Miami; apply an 
exemption to abate the taxes, interest and fees on said parcels in order to 
be in compliance with Gila County Superior Court Judgment No. 
CV201200257; and authorize the Chairman's signature on each of the 
three related Certificate of Removal and Abatement of Tax forms.   
 
Debi Savage, Treasurer, stated that the Town of Miami won a judgment in the 
Gila County Superior Court of Arizona.  There are three parcels named above 
that are under the ownership name of “Miami Trust Company.”  Judgment No. 
CV201200257 states that the ownership name for these three parcels is to be 
renamed as the “Town of Miami;” therefore, she recommends authorizing the 
ownership name change as well as the abatement of the delinquent taxes for 
the three aforementioned parcel numbers.  The Board members concurred with 
the recommendation of Ms. Savage.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 
Treasurer's Office to correct ownership on Assessor's parcel numbers 206-16-
007A, 206-16-007B, and 206-16-007C to be in the name of the Town of Miami; 
applied an exemption to abate the taxes, interest and fees on said parcels in 
order to be in compliance with Gila County Superior Court Judgment No. 
CV201200257; and authorized the Chairman's signature on each of the three 
related Certificate of Removal and Abatement of Tax forms. 

  
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services 
Contracts to retain the services of attorneys for the period of July 1, 
2015, through June 30, 2016; all of whom assist the Superior Court in 
Gila County as public defenders on an annual basis.   



Page 4 of 16 

 

Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that there are various 
Professional Services Contracts currently in place with attorneys that assist the 
Superior Court as public defenders, which are due to expire on June 30, 2015.  
This request is to authorize the contracts attached to this agenda item in order 
to retain the services of various attorneys for an additional year beginning July 
1, 2015.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin inquired as to the total number of attorney contracts.  
Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, replied that in addition to 
these contracts, four more contracts will be presented to the Board for approval 
at a future meeting, which will bring the total number of attorney contracts to 
15.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired of Mr. Bearup as to the reason the contract 
price amounts vary from attorney to attorney.  Mr. Bearup replied that the 
contract amount for each attorney is based on case load and the nature of the 
cases to be handled.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Professional Services Contracts to retain the 
services of attorneys for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016; all 
of whom assist the Superior Court in Gila County as public defenders on an 
annual basis.  

  
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to review the proposals received for 
Request for Proposals No. 032615 to provide food and laundry services at 
the Gila County Detention Center; award to the lowest, most responsive, 
responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature 
on the award contract for the winning bidder.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that this is long-standing contract for which a request for 
proposal was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper on April 29, 
2015, and May 6, 2015.  A mandatory pre-bid walk-through was held on May 
11, 2015, and two vendors were present; the current vendor for food and 
laundry services, and one other vendor.  The bids were opened on May 18th and 
have been evaluated by County staff.  The recommendation is for the Board to 
award this contract to Trinity Services Group, Inc.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if employees of the current vendor (Aramark) would 
be required to apply and interview for positions if the contract is awarded to 
Trinity Services Group, Inc., and if County benefits are provided to those 
employees.  Justin M. Solberg, Sheriff’s Office Detention Commander, replied 
that it is his understanding that if the contract is awarded to Trinity Services 
Group, Inc., the employees would be evaluated based on their qualifications 
and experience.  He added that the County does not provide benefits to 
Aramark employees.  Chairman Pastor asked for the number of Aramark 



Page 5 of 16 

 

employees who are working in the kitchen at the Detention Center.  Mr. 
Solberg answered that there are currently six Aramark employees.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the billing procedures with regard to monthly 
food and laundry statements.  Mr. Hessenius responded that bills are received 
by the Finance Department, forwarded to the departments for review and 
approval, and then they are returned to Finance for processing.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if the vendor or the County would be responsible for 
problem resolution.  Mr. Solberg replied that Trinity Services Group, Inc. would 
handle problem resolution and that it would not be the responsibility of the 
County.  Chairman Pastor asked for the term of the contract, and Mr. 
Hessenius replied that it is a one-year contract with the option to renew the 
contract for three one-year periods.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously awarded Request for Proposals No. 032615 to provide food 
and laundry services at the Gila County Detention Center to Trinity Services 
Group, Inc.; and authorized the Chairman's signature on the award contract 
for the winning bidder.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-06-02 
which authorizes the execution of Amendment No. One to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (ADOT File No. IGA/JPA 08-132-I) between 
Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation for 
the design of a bridge and approaches over Tonto Creek near Punkin 
Center.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) 
initially requested $10,000 for this project and has since requested the 
County’s approval of an amendment which would add $13,870 to the project 
for ADOT’s Project Management and Design Review fee.  The County would be 
responsible for the entire amount.  The fee will be paid from the County’s Half-
Cent Transportation Excise Tax.  ADOT has been billing the County monthly, 
and one bill in the amount of $1,100 was paid; however, additional bills may 
not be paid legally without Board approval of this amendment via the 
resolution as stated above.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded 
by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 15-06-
02 which authorizes the execution of Amendment No. One to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (ADOT File No. IGA/JPA 08-132-I) between Gila 
County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation for the design 
of a bridge and approaches over Tonto Creek near Punkin Center.  (A copy of 
the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 



Page 6 of 16 

 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of Mohave 
Educational Services Cooperative, Inc. Contract No. 14G-PMAC2-0903 
with Pueblo Mechanical & Controls, Inc. in the amount of $84,922.92 for 
modifications to the Globe Courthouse 2nd floor HVAC units and duct 
work.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that a need has been identified by County administration 
to improve the air circulation on the 2nd floor of the Globe Courthouse.  Pueblo 
Mechanical & Controls, Inc. has an existing contract with Mohave Educational 
Services Cooperative, Inc. (MESC), which is utilized by other various 
government municipalities throughout the state.  Pueblo Mechanical & 
Controls, Inc. has provided an engineering study and proposal to the County 
for this project.  The recommendation from Public Works staff is to utilize the 
existing contract MESC has with Pueblo Mechanical & Controls, Inc. in order 
to complete this project.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti advised that the MESC contract is run by the state and 
MESC uses various contractors, such as Pueblo Mechanical & Controls, Inc.  
He feels that the contract MESC has with Pueblo Mechanical & Controls, Inc. 
should only be used when there is a need for a “rush” job; otherwise, he feels 
the quoted price is too high.  He proceeded to review the scope of work for this 
project and advised that there wasn’t anything “special” about this project; 
therefore, he felt the price to complete the project should be lower.  He 
recommended not approving the use of MESC’s contract with Pueblo 
Mechanical and Controls, Inc. at this time, and to proceed with re-bidding the 
project.  Chairman Pastor commented that Supervisor Marcanti has the 
professional expertise to comment on this projected work because that is the 
nature of his business aside from being a Supervisor, so he agreed with him.  
 
Chairman Pastor advised that the Board is not obligated to use this contract as 
presented and the bid could be rejected.  He asked for confirmation of that 
statement from Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief, 
which was done.  Mr. Sanders advised that the County has used Pueblo 
Mechanical and Controls, Inc. in the past and it was pleased with their work.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that if modifications were made to the 2nd floor at 
this time, she questioned if there would be a need to make further 
modifications to the HVAC units and duct work in the future because she has 
experienced that situation on similar projects.  Mr. Sanders didn’t foresee any 
future modifications as long as there weren’t any future modifications to the 
floor plan of the 2nd floor.   
 
In addition to Supervisor Marcanti recommending that the Board reject the 
contract that was presented, he made a motion at this time to direct Public 
Works and Finance to solicit other proposals for this project.  The Board held a 



Page 7 of 16 

 

brief discussion on the proposed motion and it was agreed that Vice-Chairman 
Martin would restate the motion to first reject the use of Mohave Educational 
Services Cooperative, Inc. Contract No. 14G-PMAC2-0903 with Pueblo 
Mechanical & Controls, Inc. in the amount of $84,922.92 for modifications to 
the Globe Courthouse 2nd floor HVAC units and duct work.  Supervisor 
Marcanti seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved.  The Board 
agreed to make another motion regarding the subsequent directives to County 
staff.  Supervisor Marcanti then made a motion to direct Public Works and 
Finance staff to proceed to solicit competitive proposals for this project, which 
was seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin.  Before Chairman Pastor called for the 
vote on the motion, he stated that the personnel on the 2nd floor should 
immediately be informed that a contract was not awarded at this time for the 
2nd floor modifications.  County Manager Don McDaniel clarified that implied in 
the Board’s directive to go out for bids on this project is to also obtain the 
services of a professional HVAC engineer.  In doing so, he stated that a 
Professional Services Agreement would also have to be approved by the Board 
with the chosen engineer whereby the chosen engineer would ultimately design 
and develop a scope of work for the project.  Vice-Chairman Martin requested 
that the Board’s directive to staff include a directive to expedite the process, of 
which that language was added to the motion and agreed to by the Board.  
Chairman Pastor called for the vote on the motion at this time, which passed 
unanimously.       
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) between Apache County, Gila County and Navajo County 
Northeastern Arizona Innovative Workforce Solutions which replaces the 
IGA between Apache County-Navajo County Workforce Investment Act 
(WIA) partnership to include Gila County in the consortium which 
provides WIA services to eligible clients in all three counties.   
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, stated that the Board is 
aware that the WIA partnership between Gila County and Pinal County will be 
ending on June 30, 2015.  She added that for the first time Gila County is 
number one in the state for performance measures with regard to WIA 
programs.  The purpose of the IGA described above is to continue to have a 
single recognized entity to administer and operate workforce investment 
programs to serve adults, dislocated workers, and youth, under Title 1 of the 
Federal Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (WIA) within Gila, Apache and 
Navajo Counties.  She introduced Susan Tegmeyer of Navajo County 
Northeastern Arizona Innovative Workforce Solutions, who stated that Navajo 
and Apache Counties are very excited to be partnering with Gila County and 
she spoke highly of the work done by Ms. Buzan.  She stated that currently the 
One-Stop Resource Center is in Show Low; however, the plan is to make Globe 
the comprehensive One-Stop Resource Center.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated 



Page 8 of 16 

 

that she is looking forward to a WIA partnership with a rural perspective.  Both 
Supervisor Marcanti and Chairman Pastor agreed with Vice-Chairman Martin.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between 
Apache County, Gila County and Navajo County Northeastern Arizona 
Innovative Workforce Solutions which replaces the IGA between Apache 
County-Navajo County Workforce Investment Act (WIA) partnership to include 
Gila County in the consortium which provides WIA services to eligible clients in 
all three counties. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Health and Emergency 
Services Division's request to apply for a prescription drug overdose 
prevention grant through the Arizona Department of Health Services and 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention in the amount of $100,000 
per year to be awarded from October 2015 through September 
2020, which would allow for the implementation of a comprehensive 
prescription drug overuse, misuse, and overdose intervention strategy to 
improve safe prescribing practices in Gila County.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, stated 
that Gila County is the second highest ranking county in Arizona for 
prescription drug abuse.  The Centers for Disease Control, via the Arizona 
Department of Health Services, inquired if the County would be interested in 
receiving a grant to help combat this issue.  The grant would be used to hire a 
full-time employee to serve both northern and southern Gila County equally to 
work with doctors and pharmacists to garner participation in a statewide data 
base system that tracks patients’ prescription drug use history.  If the 
physician or pharmacist decides to participate in this program, he/she would 
have access to information regarding their patients’ prescription drug history.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, commented that she is 
aware of the prescription drug abuse problem in the County with regard to “pill 
shopping” and overuse of prescription drugs.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if 
the information identified in this program would be made public.  Mr. 
O’Driscoll replied that the information obtained is anonymous and this 
program is intended to teach physicians and pharmacists how to access the 
data base information. 
 
Jon Cornell of KQSS radio station inquired as to how the information would be 
delivered to the physicians and pharmacies.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that the 
individual hired for this position will personally reach out to each physician 
and pharmacist.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Health and Emergency 
Services Division's request to apply for a prescription drug overdose prevention 



Page 9 of 16 

 

grant through the Arizona Department of Health Services and Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention in the amount of $100,000 per year to be 
awarded from October 2015 through September 2020, which would allow for 
the implementation of a comprehensive prescription drug overuse, misuse, and 
overdose intervention strategy to improve safe prescribing practices in Gila 
County. 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. ADHS15-094962) with the Arizona Department 
of Health Services to receive partial funding in the amount of $217,128 
(Phase I and II) for the contract period of July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2020, 
of which this agreement integrates various health-related grant contracts 
currently utilized by the Gila County Health Department.   
 
Mr. O'Driscoll stated that all 15 Arizona counties are working with the Arizona 
Department of Health Services (ADHS) to consolidate multiple grants that have 
been awarded by ADHS to each county into one Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA) for each county.  This integrated IGA will allow the Gila County Health 
Department the flexibility to offer a variety of evidence-based strategies to best 
suit the needs of the local communities.  The purpose of this IGA is to leverage 
multiple public health funding sources to support implementation of health 
priorities in the Arizona Health Improvement Plan and the Community Health 
Improvement Plans.  Implementation of this IGA, if approved, will be completed 
in three phases that will occur in the first year of the IGA to accommodate 
funding cycles.  Phase I will include Tobacco, Chronic Disease and Health in 
Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI) and will begin July 2015.  Phase II will include 
the Public Health and Health Services Block Grant and will begin October 
2015.  Phase III will include Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family Planning and 
Maternal and Child Health will begin in January 2016.  All three phases will be 
operational and fully implemented in years two through five with annual start 
dates of July 1st.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if the amount of the funding would decrease, to 
which Mr. O’Driscoll replied that there would be no decrease in funding.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. 
ADHS15-094962) with the Arizona Department of Health Services to receive 
partial funding in the amount of $217,128 (Phase I and II) for the contract 
period of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2020, of which this agreement integrates 
various health-related grant contracts currently utilized by the Gila County 
Health Department. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services Contract No. 021315 - Public Health Emergency 



Page 10 of 16 

 

Preparedness Website Development to increase the award amount from 
$45,000 to $56,000 which will allow Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness to expand the reach of the new Gila Ready website to 
include a communicable disease and infectious disease tab with multiple 
content sections as well as a tab for the on-boarding, marketing, and 
maintenance of the planned Mass Notification Emergency Alert System.   
 
Mr. O'Driscoll explained that Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) is 
seeking $11,000 in additional assistance from Pinnacle Prevention for 
coordination and collaboration efforts supporting the development of the Gila 
County Emergency Management (EM)/PHEP website development.  As part of 
the contract to develop a website for EM/PHEP, PHEP would like to amend the 
contract to include design and development of two additional website tabs 
focused on communicable disease, and the County’s Emergency Mass 
Notification System, which will be implemented in the near future.  This 
amendment will allow PHEP to meet the deliverables addressed under the 
Ebola and Infectious Diseases Grant.  Mr. O’Driscoll stated that he has seen 
the draft of the enhancement and was impressed with it, and he expects to see 
the completed project in four to six weeks.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 021315 - 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness Website Development to increase the 
award amount from $45,000 to $56,000. 
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services Contract No. 010815-1 - Emergency Management 
Program Consultation Services for Operational Plans increasing the 
current contract amount by $10,000 for a new total contract amount of 
$55,000, which will meet the Emergency Management Program Grant 
deliverable of performing an exercise associated with our revised Gila 
County Emergency Operations Plan.   
 
Mr. O'Driscoll stated that this is a request to shift $10,000, currently budgeted, 
to Willdan Homeland Solutions in order to design and facilitate an emergency 
operations workshop with regional and community partners, and which will be 
included as part of the required deliverables of the Emergency Management 
Program Grant.  Chairman Pastor inquired if this workshop will be available to 
other counties and the time frame for completion, to which Mr. O’Driscoll 
affirmed that it will be available to other counties, but he was not sure which 
counties or the date of completion.  He anticipates that the workshop will be 
completed in April.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services Contract No. 010815-1 - Emergency Management 



Page 11 of 16 

 

Program Consultation Services for Operational Plans increasing the current 
contract amount by $10,000 for a new total contract amount of $55,000. 
 
K.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Attachment A to this 
agenda item, which is the annual adjustment to the Compensation Plan 
based upon the annual increase in the Consumer Price Index equal to 
1.8% and adjust all employees’ salaries by 1.8% effective June 29, 2015.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, provided the following background 
information by stating that in November 2012, the Board of Supervisors 
approved a lump sum payment to employees based upon the increase in the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI).  The 1.7% payment was the first pay increase 
employees had received since January 2008.  In July 2013, the Board approved 
a performance based lump sum payment to employees ranging from 1.5% to 
3.5% based upon the individual's performance.  In December 2013, the Board 
approved a lump sum payment to employees based upon the 1.8% increase in 
the CPI.  In June 2014, the Board approved a performance based lump sum 
payment to employees ranging from 1.5% to 3.5% based upon the individual's 
performance.  The Board has been responsive on a six-month basis or driven 
by employee performance to the Classification and Compensation Study 
resulting in all employees receiving an increase in pay with the exception of 
recent hires, as those salaries were already correct.  Mr. McDaniel stated that it 
is important to maintain the proper salary distribution in the Compensation 
Plan regardless of the availability of funds.  Staff recommends that the Board 
keep the Compensation Plan up-to-date on an annual basis by providing to the 
employees the benefit of the Plan which provides for a 1.8% increase in salaries 
based on the CPI. 
 
Jon Cornell of KQSS radio station requested clarification with regard to 
performance based pay increases.  Mr. McDaniel explained that this is a 2-step 
process and this action today is one of the steps.  He also explained that each 
year employees will have the opportunity to receive a salary increase based on 
the CPI, if funds are available.  Every six months employees will also have the 
opportunity to receive a lump-sum payment based on performance.  Chairman 
Pastor added that those payments and salary increases are based on Board 
approval on an annual basis.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Attachment A to 
this agenda item, which is the annual adjustment to the Compensation Plan 
based upon the annual increase in the Consumer Price Index equal to 1.8% 
and adjusted all employees’ salaries by 1.8% effective June 29, 2015. 
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 



Page 12 of 16 

 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 021915-1 
between Gila County and Rodriguez Constructions, Inc. for Major 
Rehabilitation Project No. HH#6510 which increases the original contract 
amount by $1,000 for a new total contract amount of $64,102.59 in order 
to perform additional work as outlined in the Amendment.  

 
B.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor 
at a fund-raising event on October 10, 2015 in Pine.  

 
C.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the sale of Assessor's parcel number 302-60-200-C to Jason Vagalatos.  

 
D.  Acknowledgment of the April 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

 
E.  Acknowledgment of the April 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

 
F.  Acknowledgment of the April 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  

  
G.  Acknowledgment of the April 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

 
H.  Acknowledgment of the April 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  

 
I.  Approval of the May 26, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  

  
J.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of May 
5, 2015, May 12, 2015, May 19, 2015, and May 26, 2015.  
 
MAY 5, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Thomas Seagraves – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/23/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 04/13/15 
NEW HIRES: 
2.  Kathleen Miranti – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 05/11/15 – 
General Fund – Replacing Guadalupe Aldape 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 



Page 13 of 16 

 

3.  C. Lynn Mata – Assessor’s Office – Chief Appraiser – 05/10/15 – General 
Fund  
REQUEST TO POST: 
4.  Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – Vacated by Destinee Barajas 
and Savannah Barajas 
 
MAY 12, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  James Weeks – Community Development – Hearing Officer – 03/30/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 07/31/10 
2.  Jordan Klabbatz – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/26/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 12/15/14 
3.  Steve Stratton – Public Works – Director of Public Works – 06/30/15 – 
Public Works Fund – DOH 06/03/02 
NEW HIRES: 
4.  Jacob Allen – Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – 05/18/15 – 
Public Works Fund – Replacing Tyler Pearce 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Susan Aliprandini – School Superintendent’s Office – Accounting Clerk – 
05/07/15 – General Fund 
6.  Jacqueline Tobin – Health and Emergency Services – Breastfeeding 
Counselor – 05/17/15 – WIC Fund 
7.  Jeff McClure – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 04/28/15 – General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
8.  Jason Fajardo – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Detention Officer 
– 05/04/15 – General Fund – Replacing Kenneth Warden 
9.  Heather Lutye – From Probation – To County Attorney’s Office – From 
Administrative Clerk Senior – To Legal Secretary Senior – 05/18/15 – From 
General(.80)/Diversion Consequences(.20) Funds – To General Fund – 
Replacing Robin Miller 
10.  Art Epperson II – Public Works – From Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic 
Lead – To Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – 05/18/15 – Public 
Works Fund – Replacing John Root 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
11.  Steven Sanders – Public Works – From Deputy Director of Public Works – 
To Acting Director of Public Works – 05/11/15 - Public Works Fund – 
Temporary assignment 
 
MAY 19, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Judy Esteves – Assessor’s Office – Cartography GIS Analyst – 06/30/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 03/04/02 
2.  Derek Bartling – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 
05/29/15 – Public Works Fund – DOH 12/30/13 



Page 14 of 16 

 

3.  Amy Wacker – Payson Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 06/02/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 01/28/08 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
4.  Stephanie Hunsaker – Payson Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate 
– 05/25/15 – General Fund – Moving from part-time to full-time 
REQUEST TO POST: 
5.  Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Executive Administrative 
Assistant 
6.  Public Works – Director of Public Works – Vacated by Steve Stratton 
7.  Payson Justice Court- Justice Court Clerk Associate – Vacated by Amy 
Wacker 
 
MAY 26, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Miranda Davis – Recorder’s Office – Temporary Recorder’s Clerk – 11/04/14 
– General Fund – DOH 10/21/14 
2.  Joseph Cook – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 05/17/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 12/24/12 
3.  Cynthia Reid – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 06/15/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 02/04/08 
4.  Ruth Lopez – School Superintendent’s Office – Account Clerk Senior – 
06/01/15 – General Fund – DOH 05/01/00 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Alex Cunningham – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior 
– 06/01/15 – Facilities Management Fund 
6.  Gabriel Valenzuela – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 02/17/15 – 
General Fund 
7.  Shealene Stidham – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Sr. – 05/22/15 – 
General Fund 
8.  Kassandra Seaver – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 06/15/15 – 
General Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
9.  Michael Hill – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff 
Task Force Detective (Temporary Assignment) – 06/01/15 – From General 
Fund – To Drug Gang Violent Crime Control Fund – Temporary assignment 
10.  Russell Toumberlin – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff Task Force 
Detective (Temporary Assignment) – To Deputy Sheriff – From Drug Gang 
Violent Crime Control Fund – To General Fund – End of temporary assignment 
11.  Ted Schaefer – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer (.48) – 06/30/14 – 
General Fund – Classification and Compensation salary update 
REQUEST TO POST: 
12.  School Superintendent’s Office – Account Clerk Senior – Vacated by Ruth 
Lopez 

  



Page 15 of 16 

 

K.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of May 4, 2015, to May 8, 
2015; and May 11, 2015 to May 15, 2015.  

  
L.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of May 
26, 2015, and June 9, 2015.  
 
May 26, 2015 
 
$2,051,198.79 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 270311 
through 270454.   
 
June 9, 2015 
 
$1,711,010.94 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 270552 
through 270737.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved the Consent Agenda action items 5A – 5L. 

 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 

  
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on issues presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   

  



Page 16 of 16 

 

Item 8 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors may 
vote to go into executive session on one or all of the items listed in this 
section.  No action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  

  
At 11:51 a.m., upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously moved to go into executive session.   
  
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to 
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding the lawsuit of Strawberry 
Ridge Estates LLC v. Gila County, 1 CA-TX-14-0004; consider its position 
in the lawsuit; and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).  If the Board does go into executive session, the 
County Attorney’s Office suggests that after adjourning from executive 
session, the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to 
proceed as directed in executive session.   

  
Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting at 12:24 p.m. and requested a 
motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously instructed the County 
Attorney’s Office to proceed as directed in the executive session regarding the 
lawsuit of Strawberry Ridge Estates LLV v. Gila County, case number 1 CA-TX-
14-004.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:25 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-3213     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Reporting
Period:

May 22, 2015; May 29, 2015; and June 5, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 5-22-15; 5-29-15; and 6-5-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of May 18, 2015, through May 22,
2015; May 25, 2015 through May 29, 2015; and June 1, 2015
through June 5, 2015.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for
Weeks Ending 5-22-15, 05-29-15 and 6-5-15
Order Agreement-Konica Minolta
Maintenance Agreement-Konica Minolta
Amendment No. 2-Sage Counseling
Amendment No. 1-Humane Society of Central Arizona
Service Agreement No. 051115-Action Communications
Amendment No. 2-Sienna Counseling
Additional Software License Agreement-New World
MegaTrak Extended Warranty Agreement 2015-2016-MegaTronics
Service Agreement No. 042915-Kino Floors
Amendment No. 2-Barbara Stone
Professional Services Contract No 051515-TD Government Solutions
Service Agreement No. 052815-Mountain Retreat Builders
Amendment No. 2-Advance Forensics Assessments



Service Agreement No. 051315-Tire Equipment Service
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 021915-Noble Building
Service Agreement No. 052915-Rodriguez Constructions



  
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
May 18, 2015 thru May 22, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Konica Minolta 
Business Solutions 

 

 
Order Agreement for new 

BIZHUB 224E copier 

 

 
$1,841.89 

plus sales tax 
 

 
N/A 

 
5-19-15 

 
Expires 

 
Purchase a new black and white Bizhub 
224e copier for the Landfill & Recycling 
Department.  
 

 
Konica Minolta 

Business Solutions 

 

 
Maintenance Agreement 

for new BIZHUB 224E 
copier 

 

 
$0.00950 plus 
sales tax per 

black and 
white copy 

 

 
Expires 48 months 

after delivery of 
machine 

 
5-19-15 

 
Expires 

 
Service and maintenance agreement for 
new copier for the Landfill & Recycling 
Department. Maintenance includes all 
supplies (except paper), toner, parts, 
labor and service calls per Mohave 
contract. 
 

 
Sage Counseling 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Limited Services Contract 
General Mental Health 

Counseling 
 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-15 to 6-30-16 

 
5-19-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods 

 
Sage Counseling provides clinical and 
educational services to the criminal 
justice system and court-mandated 
clients. Amendment No. 2 has been 
issued to extend the contract term for 
one additional year from July 01, 2015 to 
June 30, 2016. 
 

 
 060614 

Humane Society of 
Central Arizona 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
060614 

Impound Agreement 
 

 

 
$31,200.00 

 
7-1-15 to 6-30-16 

 
5-19-15 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one year 
period 

 
This agreement has been in existence for 
many years. The purpose is to allow 
animals that have been captured by 
Rabies Control in Payson and 
surrounding areas to be impounded by 
the Contractor. This keeps the animals 
close to their owners and prevents the 
daily transport from Payson to Globe. 
The cost will be $2,600.00 per month. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 

May 18, 2015 thru May 22, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

051115 
Action Communications 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

051115 
Radio Communications 

Base Radio and Repeater 
Sheriff’s Office 

 

 
$5,068.00 

 
5-19-15 to 6-30-15 

 
5-19-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Jail is having problems with limited 
Radio Communications capabilities as 
they are having issues hearing their 
Transport Vehicles while transporting 
Jail Inmates and are in need of a new 
repeater. 
 

 
Sienna Counseling and 

Consulting 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Limited Services Contract 
Sex Offender Counseling 

 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-15 to 6-30-16 

 
5-19-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods 

 
Amendment No. 2 will extend the 
contract term with Sienna Counseling & 
Consulting for an additional year from 
July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. Sienna 
provides sex offender counseling. 
 

 
1273-15L1A 

New World Systems 

 

 
Additional Software 
License Agreement 

eTimesheets 
 
 

 

 
$1,200.00 for 

Implementation 
& Training 

Services plus 
$2,000 for 
Estimated 

Travel 
 

 
TBD 

 
5-19-15 

 
N/A 

 
The Finance Department is replacing two 
existing unused New World modules 
with new “e Timesheets” module from 
New World. 

 
 
 
May 25, 2015 thru May 29, 2015 
 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

MegaTronics 
International Corp. 

 

 
MegaTrak Extended 

Warranty Agreement  

 

 
$4,285.00 

 

 
8-1-15 to 7-31-16 

 
5-27-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will provide extended 
warranty for the fuel maintenance 
system utilized by the County.  Fuel 
access MCU on all fuel tanks and service 
trucks. 
 

 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
May 25, 2015 thru May 29, 2015 
 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

 042915 
Kino Floors & Interiors, 

LLC 

 
Service Agreement No. 

042915 
Replace Flooring in County 

Attorney’s Office 
Globe Superior Court 

 

 
$2,580.86 

 
5-27-15 to 6-30-15 

 
5-27-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to remove existing tile 
flooring and cove base in the County 
Attorney’s Office, make any necessary 
drywall repairs and install Carpet Tile 
and vinyl base. 
 

 
080913-2 

Barbara Stone, MSW, 
BSN, RN, MSN, FNP-C, 

PMHNP-C 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 
Professional Services 

Agreement No. 080913-2 
HIV Care and Services 

 

 
$10,000.00 

 

 
4-1-15 to 3-31-16 

 
5-27-15 

 
Option to renew for 3 

additional one year 
periods 

 
Contractor will provide HIV Care and 
Services for the Payson area.  Contract 
expires on 03-31-15. Amendment No. 2 
will allow the contract term to be 
extended from 04-01-15 to 03-31-16. 
 
 

 
051515 

TD Government 
Solutions 

 

 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 051515 
Operational Review 

Consultant 

 

 
$100.00/hr., 

plus mileage at 
$.56 per mile, 
plus lodging if 

approve by 
County 

Manager 
 

 
5-13-15 to 5-12-16 

 
5-27-15 

 
Expires 

 
Consultant shall provide services to the 
County on an as needed basis. 

 
 
 
June 1, 2015 thru June 5, 2015 
 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

 052815 
Mountain Retreat 

Builders LLC. 

 
Service Agreement No. 

052815 
Weatherization Project 

HH#4956 

 

 
$9,750.00 

 
6-3-15 to 6-30-15 

 
6-2-15 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this weatherization 
project is, but not limited to, Contractor 
shall replace window cooler, remove roof 
mounted cooler and jack, install furnace 
system complete with ductwork, patch 
holes, fiberglass insulation, install skirt, 
seal windows, and install 30 gallon hot 
water heater. 
 

 



  
Page 4 

 
  

 
June 1, 2015 thru June 5, 2015 
 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Advance Forensic 
Assessments, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Limited Services Contract 
Polygraph Testing 

 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 
7-1-15 to 6-30-16 

 
6-2-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods 

 
Amendment No. 2 will extend the 
contract from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 
2016. Advance Forensic Assessments, 
Inc. provides polygraph examinations on 
post-convicted sex offenders. 
 

 
051315 

Tire Equipment Service 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

051315 
Vehicle A/C Machine 

Repair 
Auto/Equipment 

Maintenance Shop 
 

 
$1,581.03 

 
6-2-15 to 6-30-15 

 
6-2-15 

 
Expires 

 
The current Vehicle A/C machine needs 
repaired in order to service County 
Vehicles. 

 
021915 

Noble Building, LLC 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
021915 

Major Rehab Project No. 
HH#4055 

 

 
Add $850.00 

for a new total 
contract 

amount of 
$49,952.00 

 
2-24-15 to 6-30-15 

 
6-2-15 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase 
the contract amount by $850.00 to install 
heat shields for fireplace, move gas line 
for range, perform additional drywall 
patches and install an additional sheet of 
siding, for a new contract amount not to 
exceed $49,952.00. 
 

 
 052915 

Rodriguez 
Constructions, Inc. 

 
Service Agreement No. 

052915 
Weatherization Project 

HH#3249 

 

 
$6,350.00 

 
5-6-15 to 6-30-15 

 
6-2-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contract is, but not limited to remove 
cooler, install 14 SEET split system, 
exhaust fan, replace water heater, caulk 
window, fiberglass insulation, and 
insulate duct. 
 

 































































































































































   
ARF-3217     Regular Agenda Item      7. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/23/2015  
Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: Community Development Division

Information
Request/Subject
Appeal Hearing on Gila County Hearing Officer's Decision on Community
Development Division Complaint No. CP1304-011

Background Information
On May 15, 2015, Gila County Hearing Officer Donald Voakes conducted
a hearing on Gila County Community Development Division Complaint
No. CP1304-011 regarding Assessor's parcel number 304-31-052J that is
located at 226 East Sycamore Lane, Payson.  The property is owned by
Greystone Enterprises, Inc. in care of Jonathan Hepp, the owner of
Greystone Enterprises, Inc.  The case involved a violation of the Gila
County Zoning Ordinance and the Gila County Lien and Clean
Ordinance.  A copy of the Civil Violation Decision, Order and Judgment
resulting from the May 15th hearing is attached to this agenda item.

In accordance with Gila County Ordinance No. 05-01 - Gila County
Hearing Officer Rules of Procedure, the defendant, Mr. Hepp, presented a
written request to Gila County to appeal the Hearing Officer's decision
before the Gila County Board of Supervisors.

Also in accordance with Ordinance No. 05-01, the record of this matter
was presented to the Clerk of the Board on June 4, 2015.  On June 10,
2015, a certified letter was mailed to Mr. Hepp notifying him of the
hearing date, time and location.  The letter also included notification to
Mr. Hepp that he may submit additional written memoranda to the Clerk
of the Board by no later than June 18, 2015, as to the reason the Board
of Supervisors should affirm, modify, or reverse the decision of the
Hearing Officer; however, the memoranda shall not raise new facts or
issues not  previously presented before the Hearing Officer.

Evaluation



Mr. Hepp has correctly followed the procedures outlined in Ordinance No.
05-01 to request a hearing before the Board of Supervisors regarding a
decision rendered by the Gila County Hearing Officer on Community
Development Division Complaint No. CP1304-011.

The Community Development Division has provided each Board member,
Clerk of the Board, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief, and
County Manager with a copy of the information pertaining to this case
and known as the "record" per Gila County Ordinance No. 05-01.

Conclusion
A hearing has been set for this date regarding the Gila County Hearing
Officer's decision on Community Development Division Complaint No.
CP1304-011.

Recommendation
Staff would recommend that the Board of Supervisors uphold the decision
rendered by the Hearing Officer

Suggested Motion
1:30 P.M. - Information/Discussion/Action to affirm, modify or reverse
the decision of the Gila County Hearing Officer regarding Community
Development Division Complaint No. CP1304-011.  (Bob Gould)

Attachments
Certified Letter to Jonathan Hepp
Civil Violation Decision, Order and Judgment-Jonathan Hepp








	Agenda
	Resolution No. 15-06-03 - Designating Day Place & Fisherman's Lane as Country Dirt Roads
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-06-03
	Att2_Day Place and Fisherman's Lane Country Dirt Road Easements
	Flying Grizzly Liquor License Application-Gila County Order No. LL-15-02
	Att1_BOS Recommendation LL-15-02
	Att2_GC Order LL-15-02 Liquor License Application
	Att3_Treasurer, Community Development and Health Dept. Interoffice Memos
	Att4_Sheriff's Office Memo and Affidavit of Posting
	Truth in Taxation Hearing
	Att1_TNT Notice
	Att2_Press Release for TNT Hearing
	Att3_TNT Notice-Affidavit of Publication
	First Things First Grant Renewal Amendment for Grant No. GRA-004-14-0616-01-Y3 Parent Outreach and Awareness
	Att1_2016 Grant Award
	Att2_Renewal Application 2016
	Att3_Original Grant Agreement GRA-RC004-0616-01
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) Grant Agreement No. GRA-RC029-16-0761-01
	Att1_Grant Agreement GRA-RC029-16-0761-01
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	Gila County Library District FY 2015-2016 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Att1_GC Public Libraries in Review
	Gila County FY 2015-2016 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Att1_Gila County FY16 Tentative Budget
	Disability Related Employment Services Contract with Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration.
	Att1_GEST Contract
	Att2_Exhibits
	Intergovernmental Agreement between Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Community Services Division
	Att1_IGA Contract No ADES15-089113
	Att2_Exhibits A-O
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	Intergovernmental Agreement No. 051915 between Gila County and Gila County Community College District for Maintenance of College Facilities
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 15-16
	Att2_Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 14-15
	Att3_Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 13-14
	Att4_Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 12-13
	Att5_Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 11-12
	Att6_Legal Explanation
	Request for Approval of Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court
	Att1_Professional Services Contract No. 041415-Ronald DeBrigida
	Att2_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-2-Brad Crider
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Independent Contractor Agreement 2014-15 Utility Assistance Programs Contract No. 07012014-15 with Arizona Community Action Association
	Att1_Contract 07012015-16
	Att2_Exhibit A
	Att3_Exhibit B
	Att4_Exhibit C
	Att5_Exhibit D
	Att6_Exhibit E
	Att7_Exhibit F
	Att8_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Lease Use Agreement Extension No. 2 for Pine-Strawberry Horseman's Association
	Att1_Lease Extension No. 2-May 2015 to May 2019
	Att2_Lease Extension-May 2010 to May 2015
	Att3_Original Lease Agreement
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement District Board Member Reappointment
	Att1_Richard Harpster's Oath of Office
	Att2_March 21, 2015 Board Minutes
	Att3_A.R.S. 48-1012
	Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board Member Appointment
	Att1_Oath of Office-Samuel Baker
	Att2_April 20, 2015 Governing Board Minutes
	Att3_A.R.S. 48-803
	Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board Resignation and Appointment.
	Att1_May 2, 2015 Board Minutes
	Att2_Bruce Johnson's Oath of Office
	Att3_Gary Richardson's Resignation Letter
	Att4_A.R.S. 48-1012
	May 2015
	Att1_May 2015
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2015
	Monthly Report May 2015
	Att1_Monthly Report for May 2015
	Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for May 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Court May 2015
	June 9, 2015
	Att1_BOS 6-9-15 Meeting Minutes
	May 22, 2015_ May 29, 2015_ and June 5, 2015
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for Weeks Ending 5-22-15, 05-29-15 and 6-5-15
	Att2_Order Agreement-Konica Minolta
	Att3_Maintenance Agreement-Konica Minolta
	Att4_Amendment No. 2-Sage Counseling
	Att5_Amendment No. 1-Humane Society of Central Arizona
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 051115-Action Communications
	Att7_Amendment No. 2-Sienna Counseling
	Att8_Additional Software License Agreement-New World
	Att9_MegaTrak Extended Warranty Agreement 2015-2016-MegaTronics
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 042915-Kino Floors
	Att11_Amendment No. 2-Barbara Stone
	Att12_Professional Services Contract No  051515-TD Government Solutions
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 052815-Mountain Retreat Builders
	Att14_Amendment No. 2-Advance Forensics Assessments
	Att15_Service Agreement No. 051315-Tire Equipment Service
	Att16_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 021915-Noble Building
	Att17_Service Agreement No. 052915-Rodriguez Constructions
	Appellate Review of Community Development Division Complaint No. CP1304-011
	Att1_Certified Letter to Jonathan Hepp
	Att2_Civil Violation Decision, Order and Judgment-Jonathan Hepp

